Public Document Pack

-—emw CITY COUNCIL

STANDARDS AND CONDUCT COMMITTEE

Meeting to be held in on
Friday, 6th March, 2020 at 10.00 am

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
N Dawson - Morley South;
B Gettings - Morley North;
P Harrand - Alwoodley;
M Harrison - Pudsey;
A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills;
P Grahame - Cross Gates and Whinmoor;
E Nash (Chair) - Hunslet and Riverside;
E Tunnicliffe - Roundhay;

Co-opted Parish Council Member
D Potter - Shadwell Parish Council

Independent Member

Gordon Tollefson

Agenda compiled by:

Harriet Speight
Governance Services
0113 37 89954



AGENDA

[tem
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an appeal the
press and public will be excluded).

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1. To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information, for the reasons outlined in the
report.

2. To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3. If so, to formally pass the following resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-




LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
AND OTHER INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct. Also to declare
any other significant interests which the Member
wishes to declare in the public interest, in
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the
Members’ Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence from the
meeting.

MINUTES - 8 MARCH 2019

To receive and approve the draft minutes of the
meeting held on 8 March 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE MONITORING
OFFICER TO THE STANDARDS AND CONDUCT
COMMITTEE

To consider the report of the City Solicitor
presenting the work carried out by the Monitoring
Officer and her staff to support the committee
throughout the year. The report also demonstrates
the ways in which the Authority has fulfilled its
statutory duty to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct.




ANNUAL REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO
FULL COUNCIL

To consider the report of the City Solicitor
presenting to the committee an annual report
relating to matters within the committee’s terms of
reference, requesting that Members refer the
report to full Council for consideration.

Third Party Recording

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not
present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take
place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those
proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available
from the contacts named on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties — code of practice

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by
a statement of when and where the recording was
made, the context of the discussion that took place,
and a clear identification of the main speakers and
their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording
in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or
misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments
made by attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts; recordings may
start at any point and end at any point but the
material between those points must be complete.

23 -
32



Agenda Iltem 6

STANDARDS AND CONDUCT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 8TH MARCH, 2019
PRESENT: Councillor E Nash in the Chair
Councillors N Dawson, G Harper,
P Harrand, M Harrison, Hughes,

A Hussain, Potter

Independent Member — Gordon Tollefson

Appeals against refusal of inspection of documents

There were no appeals.

Exempt Information - Possible exclusion of the press and public
There were no exempt items.

Late items

There were no late items.

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.
Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor E Tunnicliffe, and Councillor G
Harper was in attendance as substitute.

Minutes - 9 March 2018

The minutes of the meeting held 9" March 2018 were approved as a correct
record.

Local Government Ethical Standards; A Review by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life - Implications for Leeds

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support submitted a report that
provided a commentary on the recent Committee on Standards in Public Life
(CSPL) report into Ethical Standards in Local Government. The report
considered matters raised in the CSPL report and asked the Standards and
Conduct Committee to consider amendments to the existing ethical
framework arrangements operating at Leeds City Council.

Draft minutes to be approved at a future meeting

Page 5



The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support introduced the report,
providing an update on Leeds’ contribution to the national assessment
conducted by the CSPL, and highlighted the key proposed changes in line
with best practice as set out in the report.

Members were advised that 26 recommendations have been made by the
CSPL to the Government (and others), which will require approval prior to any
implementation, and that consultation is anticipated by the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government with a formal response due by
the summer.

Members’ attention was also drawn to 15 areas of Best Practice aimed at
Local Authorities and against which CSPL will be further benchmarking local
authorities in 2020.

Members discussed a number of matters, including:

e CSPL recognition of some practices already implemented in Leeds,
such as the Annual Report to Full Council, and the recommended
financial threshold for Gifts and Hospitality that is now contained in the
CSPL best practice document.

e The importance of any amendments to Section 27 (2) of the Localism
Act 2011 making clear the circumstances where a Member will be
construed to be acting, or giving the impression they are acting, in an
official capacity and that such a definition should make a clear
distinction between activities in a Members private or political life where
the Code of Conduct should not apply.

e The Committee was advised that details of gifts and hospitality
received by Members were currently made available on their individual
Register of Interests on the Council’s website. However, the CSPL
recommend that a separate publication containing details of all
Members’ gifts and hospitality should be collated and published in one
place on a quarterly basis. Members were supportive of a document
being published on a quarterly basis.

e Members were supportive of amendments put forward by the Scrutiny
Board Resources and Strategy and proposed by the Monitoring Officer
to the social media guidance at Appendix 5. A Member also cautioned
about the possible perception of Members endorsing other social
media users’ comments.

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support confirmed that the
observations of the Committee and the amended Social Media Guidance will
be communicated to Group Whips. The Parish Council Members present
welcomed the idea of a single Members’ Code of Conduct for Parish Councils,
in line with the Leeds City Council Members’ Code of Conduct. The
Committee was informed that a Members’ Code of Conduct suitable for use
across all Councils is currently being developed by the Local Government
Association (LGA).

RESOLVED -

Draft minutes to be approved at a future meeting

Page 6



a) That the contents of the report be noted;

b) That the Committee recommend to General Purpose Committee that
the Member’s Code of Conduct be amended to reflect Best Practice 1
& 2 as set out in the submitted report;

c) That the Committee recommend to General Purposes Committee that
the Procedure for Handling Complaints alleging a failure to comply with
the Code of Conduct be amended to reflect Best Practice 8 & 11 as set
out in the submitted report;

d) That a separate publication containing details of all Members’ gifts and
Hospitality should be collated and published in one place on a quarterly
basis;

e) That the amendments to the Guidance for Members on Social Media
set out by the Monitoring Officer at Appendix 5 be agreed.

Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer to the Standards and Conduct
Committee

The City Solicitor submitted a report that presented the work carried out by
the Monitoring Officer and her staff to support the Committee throughout the
year. The report also demonstrated the ways in which the Authority has
fulfilled its statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct.

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support introduced the report,
highlighting the lower number of complaints for 2018/19 than previous years.
Members were also informed of a request following publication of the report,
for a Members’ home address to be withheld the public. The Monitoring
Officer had granted the permission to withhold this information on the grounds
of intimidation.

RESOLVED - That the contents of the report be noted.
Annual Report of the Committee to Full Council

The City Solicitor submitted a report that presented to the Committee an
annual report relating to matters within the Committee’s terms of reference
and asked Members to refer the report to full Council for consideration.

The Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support introduced the report, advising
Members that the report would be amended to reflect the additional
permission to withhold details of a Members’ address, as described during
consideration of the previous item.

RESOLVED -
a) That the draft Annual Report to Full Council at Appendix 1 be agreed,;
b) That the Annual Report at Appendix 1 be referred to Full Council for

consideration.

The meeting ended at 2:55pm.

Draft minutes to be approved at a future meeting

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

eed S Report author: Andy Hodson
Tel: 0113 37 8866 0

TY COUNCIL

Report of City Solicitor
Report to Standards and Conduct Committee
Date: 6" March 2020

Subject: Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer to the Standards and Conduct
Committee

Are specific electoral wards affected? [JYes [X]INo

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

Has consultation been carried out? [ ]Yes [X]INo

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration? [1Yes [XINo

Will the decision be open for call-in? []Yes [XINo

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [1Yyes X No
If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues

This annual report to the Standards and Conduct Committee summarises the work carried
out by the Monitoring Officer and her staff to support the Committee throughout the year.
The report provides assurances in respect of work undertaken to:

e Train newly elected members;

e Ensure registers of interests and dispensations were correctly administered —
particularly after the all-out elections;

e Deal with any sensitive interests;
e Assess and respond to complaints;

e Support Parish and Town Councils;

2. Best Council Plan Implications (click here for the latest version of the Best Council Plan)

e There are no specific implications for the Best Council Plan arising from this report.

¢ Principle 3 of the Code of Corporate Governance states that the Council will put in
place a Code of Conduct and keep it under review.

e The Localism Act 2011 places a duty on the Council to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct amongst Members and co-opted Members of the authority.

Page 9


https://www.leeds.gov.uk/your-council/plans-and-strategies/council-plans

e This report outlines how the Standards and Conduct Committee has carried out this
duty on behalf of the Council.

3. Resource Implications
e The Monitoring Officer is satisfied that the authority continues to meet its statutory

obligations for Standards and Conduct and confirms, by way of this report, that she
has adequate resources to fulfil her statutory duties.

Recommendations

a) Members are asked to consider the matters set out in this report.

Page 10



11

2.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Purpose of this report

The purpose of this report is to present to the committee an annual report relating to
matters within the committee’s terms of reference. Council Procedure Rule 2.2 (f)
stipulates that an annual report of the committee must be referred to full Council for
consideration; this being to support the duty of the Authority to promote and
maintain high standards of conducts by Members and co-opted Members of the
Council.

Background information

This annual report presents the work carried out by the Monitoring Officer and her
staff to support the committee throughout the year. The report also demonstrates
the ways in which the Authority has fulfilled its statutory duty to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct.

Main issues

The Standards and Conduct Committee has the following terms of reference:

To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted
members of the authority.

To advise the authority in relation to the adoption, revision or replacement of
the code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted
members of the authority when they are acting in that capacity.

To consider and determine written allegations that a member or co-opted
member of the authority has failed to comply with the authority’s code of
conduct, or that a member or co-opted member of a parish council in the
Leeds area has failed to comply with the parish council’s code of conduct.

Following a determination of whether or not a member or co-opted member of
the authority has failed to comply with the code of conduct, to consider
whether or not action might be necessary, and to make recommendations on
the form of action.

To advise the authority in relation to the adoption, revision or replacement of
the code dealing with the conduct that is expected of employees of the
authority.

The committee meets annually, or at other frequencies that circumstances required.
Regular briefings have taken place with the chair of the committee and with the
council’s appointed Independent Member.

Training

As a result of the Local elections in May 2019 (and the By-Election in December
2019) 10 new members have been elected, one of whom was returning to Council.

All those Members who were new to the Council received induction training on the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the specific requirements relating to the
registration and declaration of interests. The session highlighted that the Code
requires Members to comply with supplementary guidance including all those codes
and protocols contained at part 5 of the council’s constitution.

Page 11



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9
3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Particular attention was drawn to the Protocol on Member Officer Relations and the
Monitoring Officer’s guidance on Social Media (a copy of which was shared with
members).

In addition, as part of prescribed training for councillors who are members of Plans
Panels, briefings have been provided on the legal framework concerning the
avoidance of bias and predetermination.

The Member Management Committee’s Member Development and ICT Working
group have reviewed both the Member Induction Programme and the wider Member
Development Strategy with a view to ensuring that both are up to date and fit for
purpose; ensuring that development opportunities meet the needs of Members in
fulfilling their roles.

In accordance with the evolving Member Development Strategy it is proposed that
training on the Council’s Ethical framework will be further enhanced to include
detailed advice and guidance in relation to the respective roles and relationships
between Members and officers. It is proposed that information will be made
available through a variety of learning media including written word, e-learning and
face to face training and discussion.

Register of Interests

The Localism Act 2011 places a duty on the Monitoring Officer of a relevant
authority to establish and maintain a register of interests of members and co-opted
members of the authority.

The Monitoring Officer has supported members of the authority (and of Parish and
Town Councils) in meeting their obligations to notify any disclosable pecuniary
interest within 28 days of either their election or of a change in the circumstances
relating to such interests.

These requirements have been met during the year with all new Members
completing their Register of Interests prior to the Annual Council meeting and
consequently well within the 28 day timeframe required by Statute.

In addition regular reminders have been issued to elected members to review their
registers of interests. Whilst some reminders have been general in nature, others
have provided focussed advice with reminders in the past year including: gifts and
hospitality; the need to register spousal interests; interests arising from
employment, office, trade, profession or vocation; dual hatted interests; and
interests relating to consideration of the budget.

Sensitive Interests

Section 32 (2) of the Localism Act 2011 allows for interests which are considered to
be sensitive to be withheld from a Member’s Register of Interests. The decision as
to whether to withhold such an interest from the public register is made by the
Monitoring Officer. Permission to withhold an interest may only be granted in cases
where disclosure of the details of an interest could lead to a member or co-opted
member, or a person connected with the member or co-opted member, being
subject to violence or intimidation — it is particularly relevant that that threat or
potential threat would be substantially contributed to as a result of those interests
appearing on the members’ public register.

In essence, a Member needs to clearly demonstrate that, either they or those
connected to them have either suffered violence or intimidation or there is a
reasonable ground for them to suppose that that may be the case if the interests are
publicly available.

Page 12



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

The Member needs to provide supporting evidence for that reasonable belief and it
is on the basis of that evidence that the Monitoring Officer agrees or not to the
interest being withheld.

Twenty six (12 in 2018/19) permissions to withhold interests are in place (having
been granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of the 435 elected Leeds City
Council and Parish and Town Council Members across the Leeds Metropolitan
District, an increase of 14 on the previous year. Twenty (7 in 2018/19) of these
relate to Leeds City Councillors, a substantial increase from last year. This reflects
the trend nationally where elected representatives face increased threats and being
targeted maliciously — often, although not exclusively, via Social Media.

In response to this the Member Management Committee established a Member
Safety Task Force (Chaired by Cllr Scopes) to:

e Ensure that elected Members are fully engaged with the formulation,
monitoring and evaluation of Members’ personal security and safety
provisions.

e Advise on policies and strategies relating to Members’ personal safety,
including providing input on the identification of ‘best fit' personal safety
devices;

e Explore support and escalation arrangements for Members from Legal
Services and West Yorkshire Police;

o Keep under review the implementation of Member safety arrangements and
evaluate the continued effectiveness of Members’ personal safety offer;

¢ Identify learning and development needs and champion take up by all
Members.

The Monitoring Officer has reported into the Task Group to give assurance as to the
proactive steps taken to engage with Members in relation to the publication of their
home addresses.

The actions taken by the Monitoring Officer in Leeds in relation to Sensitive
Interests mirrors a recommendation recently made (December 2017) by the
Committee on Standards in Public Life. The Committee, in their report ‘Intimidation
in Public Life — A review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life’, recommend
that all Monitoring Officers ‘Should ensure members required to declare pecuniary
interest are aware of the sensitive interest provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

Members attention is also drawn to the report from the Committee on Standards in
Public Life (CSPL),into Local Government Standards arrangements (reported to the
Committee last year) which made a recommendation to Government to clarify that a
councillor does not need to register their home address on an authority’s register of
interests. No progress has been made by Government in relation to this. A more
detailed note on progress in addressing the recommendations of the CSPL is
provided later in this report.

Dispensations

If a councillor wishes to apply for a dispensation to allow them to take part in a
meeting considering a matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
they must submit a written application to the Monitoring Officer.

Page 13



3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

Applications are then decided by the Head of Paid Service. However, in deciding
whether to grant a dispensation the Head of Paid Service must have regard to

s 33(2) Localism Act and, as per arrangements established in Leeds, consult with
the Chair of the Standards and Conduct Committee.

No alterations have been made to the Standards and Conduct Committee’s
conclusions regarding local prohibitions on councillor’s involvement in decision
making where they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI). Members will
recall that the circumstances where a member of the public has rights to attend and
make representations — for example in relation to a personal planning application -
the committee’s view was that this limitation placed an unjust discrimination upon
councillors.

In light of this, and recognising the committee’s views on this matter, subject to
certain constraints, and the receipt of an application, the Head of Paid Service has
continued to set aside these restrictions by way of the granting of a dispensation to
newly elected members.

The dispensation allow members (when they have a DPI) to make representations
at a meeting where members of the public have the same entitlement — however
those members must not otherwise be involved in the decision making of the
decision making body.

The other active dispensation, granted to all Members, permits members to take
part and vote in matters relating to:

e Any office held within Leeds City Council for which they receive a taxable
income; and

¢ Any office held outside Leeds City Council (to which they have been appointed
by Leeds City Council) for which they receive a taxable income.

Members will recall from last year’s report that in May 2018, following all out
elections, both dispensations were granted until May 2022 reflecting the four year
term of office to be served by one third of those councillors elected. A new
dispensation was granted in the same terms for those Members elected at the 2019
local election lasting until May 2023 reflecting their term of office, with a further
dispensation being granted for the Member elected at the 2019 by-election also to
expire in May 2023 at the end of her term of office.

It is proposed that subject to any legislative or policy change, and in consultation
with the Chair of this Committee the Chief Executive will be invited to grant
dispensations in similar terms following each local election, for a period reflecting
the term of office of successful candidates.

Complaint handling

Leeds City Council has a responsibility for making arrangements to receive and
consider complaints against Leeds City Council members and parish and town
councillors in Leeds. At Stage 2 of the complaints procedure the Chair of the
Standards and Conduct Committee must be consulted by the Monitoring Officer in
deciding whether the matters raised by the complainant have been appropriately
addressed by the subject Member. If a complaint was to reach Stage 3 of the
complaints procedure the Consideration Sub-Committee of the Standards and
Conduct Committee would need to meet to consider the complaint and decide
whether the Code of Conduct had been breached and what action to recommend.

Page 14



3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

So far all complaints this year have been resolved either before or at Stage 1 of the
complaints procedure. There have been no formal findings of a failure by Leeds City
Councillors or Parish and Town Councillors in Leeds to comply with the relevant
Code of Conduct.

As part of their regular briefings (with the Deputy Monitoring Officers) the Chair and
the Independent Person have been appraised with a summary of the (anonymised)
complaints that have been received together with an outline of how those
complaints have been assessed and concluded.

In order to be considered under the formal complaints process, complaints must be
submitted in writing, must provide information to substantiate the claims made, and
should outline what form of resolution the complainant is seeking.

Each complaint is assessed by either the Monitoring Officer (or one of her
Deputies), in consultation with the Independent Person; it is the Monitoring Officer
(or her nominated Deputy) that makes a decision as to whether it will be treated as
a valid complaint or not. Where information is lacking, complainants are also
offered the opportunity to provide further information to substantiate their complaint
to enable an objective assessment to be undertaken.

Complaints relating to Leeds City Councillors

Last year, at the time the Committee met, Members were advised that 6 complaints
had been received in respect of Leeds City Council Members. One further
complaint was received between the committee meeting and the end of the 2018/19
Municipal year.

From the commencement of this Municipal Year (to date) there have been 12
complaints made against Leeds City Councillors.

Leeds City Council Member Complaints Summary

Complaint | Nature of Complaint Outcome
1-4 Complaint made in relation to | No further action - complaint invalid under
comments made by subject paragraphs 6 (c) and 6 (l) of the complaints
Member at an event. procedure

Complaint related to subject | No further action invalid under paragraph 6
5 Members’ response to (d) and 6 (1)
correspondence

Complaint concerned issues | No further action - no information has been
6 relating to involvement of provided to substantiate invalid under
subject member in Paragraph 6(1)

unsuccessful planning
application of complainant

Issues relating to statement Awaiting further information to substantiate
7 made by the Subject Member | complaint.
to Court

Page 15




3.37

3.38

3.39

Complaint | Nature of Complaint Outcome

Issues concerning 4 subject | No further action — various reasons; 6(d),
8 Members various separate 6(k) and 6 (1)

engagement with the
complainant’s planning
application at Plans Panel.

Issues regarding interaction No further action — request for complaint form
9 of Subject Member with a to be completed along with provision of

third party and alleged information to substantiate the claims made —
misuse of Councillor position. | no further correspondence received.

Following release of No further action - no information has been
10 information under Freedom provided to substantiate invalid under

of Information, complainant Paragraph 6(1)

concerned about terminology
used by Subject Member in
an email and the Subject
Members involvement in an
event booking.

Concern over Subject Currently being assessed
11 Members response to
complainant’s Social Media
postings about Subject
Member’s private life and
transparency of interests.

Concern over interaction of Currently being assessed
12 Subject Member with
Complainant following
complainant’s Social Media
postings concerning
Member’s private life and

transparency of interests.

There have been no trends in relation to the types of complaints received, although
complaints 1-4 related to the same issues complained of by 4 different individuals
about the same Subject Member. Complaints 11 and 12, are separate complaints
from different individuals but relate to the same Subject Member. The most notable
element though is the increase in complaints, which, although remaining small,
doubled in the last reporting period.

As Members will recall, complaints alleging a failure to register a disclosable
pecuniary interest are matters for consideration by the West Yorkshire Police as the
Localism Act 2011 has made such failures a criminal offence. No such complaints
have been received this year.

Complaints relating to Parish and Town Councillors in Leeds

Last year, at the time the Committee met, Members were advised that two
complaints were received in respect of Parish and Town Council Members. No
further complaints were received between the committee meeting and the end of
the Municipal year.

Page 16




3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

At the time of this report, in the 2019/20 Municipal Year the Monitoring Officer has
received seven complaints relating to Parish or Town Councillors in the Leeds area,;
these are summarised in the table below.

Parish and Town Council Member Complaints Summary

Complaint | Nature of Complaint Outcome
a-e Complaint made in relation to | No further Action issues do not fall within the
Subject Member’s private scope of Code or Complaints procedure -
landholdings and neighbour invalid under Paragraph 6 (l)
dispute.
Issues regarding No further Action - Complaint form and
f engagement with a procedure sent — no further correspondence

contractor and resolution of received.
disputes — complaint relates
to 2 Subject Members.

Initial correspondence No further action. Complaint form and

g received concerning dispute | procedure sent with request to substantiate
over handling of booking claims made— no further correspondence
arrangements at Town received.
Council.

Analysis shows that complaints a-e related to the same issues complained of by 5
different individuals about the same Subject Member. Complaints f and g, are
separate complaints but relate (complaint f — in part) to the same Subject Member?,

As Members will recall, complaints alleging a failure to register a disclosable
pecuniary interest are matters for consideration by the West Yorkshire Police as the
Localism Act 2011 has made such failures a criminal offence. No such complaints
have been received this year in relation to Parish and Town Councils.

Supporting Members of Parish and Town Councils

Parish and Town Councils continue with the greater responsibilities under the
Localism Act 2011 for making their own standards arrangements. These
responsibilities include:

o promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by their own Members;

o formally adopting a Code of Conduct that is consistent with the requirements
of the Localism Act and publicising that adoption;

o completing a register of disclosable pecuniary interests and ensuring that
information about this register is available on the Parish or Town Council’s
own website (if it has one);

o putting in place arrangements for Members to apply for and be granted a
dispensation; and

1 This Member is a dual hatted Member who was also the Subject Member in complaints 11 and 12 in the
table relating to Leeds City Councillors.

Page 17




3.44

3.45

3.46

3.47

3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

3.52

o Ensuring that arrangements are in place for the Parish or Town Council to
consider any complaints referred to it by Leeds City Council and to decide on
any appropriate action against the subject Member.

Under the previous standards and conduct legislation many of these responsibilities
were carried out by the Standards Committee on behalf of Parish and Town
Councils.

Leeds City Council also has a responsibility to collate the registers of interest
completed by Parish and Town Councillors in Leeds and to publish these on the
Council’'s website. In May 2019 all-out elections took place for parish and town
councillors across the Leeds district. Arrangements were put in place to provide
guidance to parish and town council clerks in respect of these duties and bespoke
training was offered to all clerks at three venues across the city.

Following the all-out Parish and Town Elections arrangements were made to
receive and publish registers of interests from each town and parish council. The
Monitoring Officer undertook careful tracking of the registration of interests by all
town and parish councillors; — there are 32 Parish and Town Councils with 303
Councillors. The Monitoring Officer has received the vast majority of these with a
very small?> number being in the process of being chased up with the clerks
concerned.

As set out earlier, Leeds City Council also has responsibility for receiving and
considering complaints made against parish and town councillors.

Under Stage 3 of the complaints procedure the Standards and Conduct Committee
have made specific arrangements for complaints against parish and town
councillors. Although such complaints would still be decided by the Consideration
Sub-Committee, a co-opted parish member would also be invited to attend the sub-
committee meeting.

A parish member is not entitled to vote at the meeting, but would be entitled to
speak at the discretion of the Chair. One parish member remains co-opted to the
committee - Councillor Debbie Potter (from Shadwell Parish Council). Co-opted
parish members are also invited to attend Standards and Conduct Committee
meetings to observe the proceedings.

The Standards and Conduct Committee are asked to consider whether a further
member be sought to form a pool of parish and town council members that the
authority can call upon as needed.

Independent Person

The Standards and Conduct Committee has supported the Independent Person (Mr
Tollefson) in his role by inviting him to attend meetings of the committee as an
observer and ensuring that he has undertaken training on the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

Following the amendment to the Procedure Rules, Mr Tollefson is now routinely
consulted on draft complaint assessments. He also has regular briefing meetings
with one of the Deputy Monitoring Officers and during the year has provided support
to Members to help resolve issues. By way of this report, the Committee are invited
to extend their thanks to Mr Tollefson for his continued service as Independent
Person this year.

2 Three registers have not been received since the elections in May 2019 — 2 from one Parish Council and 1
another (both with the same clerk). One further register is due from one Town Council as a result of aTown
Councillor appointment in late January 2020.

Page 18



3.53

3.54

3.55

3.56

4.1

41.1

4.2

42.1

4.3

431

Progressing the Recommendations from the Committee on Standards in
Public Life.

The Committee launched their findings at an event in Parliament on the 30th
January 2019 to which the chair, Clir Nash and the Deputy Monitoring Officer were
invited by the committee’s secretariat.

Following recommendations made by the Standards and Conduct Committee the
Annual Council meeting approved enhancements of the ethical framework in Leeds
— patrticularly relating to Bullying and Harassment provisions in the Code of
Conduct, the involvement of the Independent Person at Stage 1 of the complaints
process and to the guidance available to Members relating to Social Media.

Since the publication of the report, the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government has been engaging with a small number of local authority Monitoring
Officers (Leeds included) to formulate the steps necessary to implement the
Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) recommendations. However, given
the recent constraints on parliamentary time little progress has been made in
responding to the CSPL recommendations.

However in response to one recommendation?, the Local Government Association
are currently undertaking a consultation exercise on the content of a new draft
Members’ Code of Conduct — the intention being that a draft Code will be consulted
upon at some point in the Spring with the LGA currently scheduled to consider a
final document at their Annual Meeting in July. Subiject to this being approved this
will be available for adoption by Local Authorities.

Corporate considerations

Consultation and engagement

In relation to complaints against Councillors, in all cases mentioned in this report
the complainant has been contacted and an explanation has been provided as to
why the complaint is not being progressed. The subject Member has also been
informed of the complaint and the response to the complainant, for information only.
As introduced last year, an explicit instruction has been introduced to remind
Members to not share the details of complaints/complainants as this is unlikely to
be in accordance with Members responsibilities as data controllers under data
protection legislation.

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

There are no implications for equality and diversity or cohesion and integration
arising from this report.

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

Principle 3 of the Code of Corporate Governance states that the Council will put in
place a Code of Conduct and keep it under review.

3 Recommendation 1 - The Local Government Association should create an updated model code of
conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.

Page 19



4.3.2

4.3.3

4.4

44.1

4.5

45.1

45.2

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

5.1

6.1

According to the Localism Act 2011 the Council has a duty to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct amongst Members and co-opted Members of the
authority. This report outlines how the Standards and Conduct Committee has
carried out this duty on behalf of the Council

Climate Emergency

There are no issues arising from this report relating to the Climate Emergency
resolution of Full Council.

Resources, procurement and value for money

There are no resource implications arising from this report although the Monitoring
Officer advises that an additional Deputy Monitoring Officer has, during the year,
been designated to support her in the discharge of her statutory functions. This has
increased both capacity and resilience in relation to the Council’s standards and
conduct work.

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

The Standards and Conduct Committee’s Terms of Reference are taken from the
Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

There are no implications for access to information. As a Council function the
report is not eligible for Call In.

Risk management

The arrangements described within this report provide assurance that the authority,
parish and town councils, individual councillors and the Monitoring Officer are
complying with the requirements set out in the Localism Act 2011. The work
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer and her staff, and by this committee, ensures
that these arrangements remain up to date and fit for purpose and that the risk of
breaching the statutory requirements is minimised.

In relation to complaints against councillors, the Monitoring Officer has considered
the information above and does not consider that there are any adverse trends in
the types of complaints received, and as no potential breaches of the Members’
Code of Conduct have been revealed, there are no issues to address through
training.

In managing risks to Members’ personal safety, the Monitoring Officer has, on
application from Members, granted permissions on requests for Members’ Personal
addresses to be withheld from the Public Register of Interests.

Conclusions

The Monitoring Officer is satisfied that the authority continues to meet its statutory
obligations for Standards and Conduct and confirms, by way of this report, that she
has adequate resources to fulfil her statutory duties.

Recommendations

Members are asked to consider the matters set out in this report

Page 20



7. Background documents*

7.1 None.

4 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

I eeds Report author: Andy Hodson
Tel: 0113 37 8866 0

== C1TY COUNCIL

Report of City Solicitor

Report to Standards and Conduct Committee

Date: 6" March 2020

Subject: Annual Report of the Committee to Full Council

Are specific electoral wards affected? [1Yes [XINo

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

Has consultation been carried out? [ ]Yes [X]No
Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [JYes [X No
integration?

Will the decision be open for call-in? [ ]Yes [X]No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [JYes [INo

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:

Appendix number:

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 The Purpose of this report is seek the approval of Members to the Committee’s
Annual Report to Full Council.

2. Background information

2.1  Council Procedure Rule 2.2 (f) stipulates that an Annual Report of the Committee
must be referred to Full Council for consideration - this being to support the duty of
the Authority to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and
co-opted Members of the Council.

3. Main issues

3.1 Members are requested to consider the draft Annual Report reflecting the work of
the Committee in the 2019/20 Municipal year, attached at Appendix 1 and
determine whether any additional commentary is required.

3.2 Members are also asked to note that given Committee and Ordinary Full Council
meeting cycles, the Annual Report will be received in March 2020.

Page 23



4.1

41.1

4.2

42.1

4.3

431

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.4

441

4.5

45.1

4.5.2

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

Corporate considerations

Consultation and engagement

This report consults Members views on the content of the Annual Report of the
Committee.

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

There are no equality and diversity or cohesion and integration issues arising from
this report.

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

Principle 3 of the Code of Corporate Governance states that the Council will put in
place a Code of Conduct and keep it under review.

According to the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a duty to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct amongst Members and co-opted Members of
the Authority. This report outlines how the Standards and Conduct Committee has
carried out this duty on behalf of the Council.

Climate Emergency

There are no issues arising from this report relating to the Climate Emergency
resolution of Full Council.

Resources, procurement and value for money

There are no resource implications arising from this report and the Monitoring
Officer confirms, by way of this report, that she has adequate resources to fulfil her
statutory duties.

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

The Standards and Conduct Committee’s terms of reference are taken from the
Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

There are no implications for access to information or call in arising from this report.

Risk management

The arrangements described within this report provide assurance that the Authority,
parish and town councils, individual councillors and the Monitoring Officer are
complying with the requirements set out in the Localism Act 2011. The work
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer and her staff, and by this Committee, ensures
that these arrangements remain up to date and fit for purpose and that the risk of
breaching the statutory requirements is minimised.

In relation to complaints against Councillors the Monitoring Officer has considered
the information above and does not consider that there are any adverse trends in
the types of complaints received, and as no potential breaches of the Members’
Code of Conduct have been revealed, there are no issues to address through
training.

Page 24



5. Recommendations

5.1 Members are requested to consider and approve the draft Annual Report at
Appendix 1 and refer the report for Full Council for consideration report

6. Background documents?

6.1 None.

1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Draft
Annual Report to Full Council

Standards and Conduct
Committee

2019/20

Page 27



1. INTRODUCTION

This is the Annual Report to Full Council relating to matters within the Standards and
Conduct Committee’s Terms of Reference. Council Procedure Rule 2.2 (f) stipulates that
an Annual Report of the Committee must be referred to Full Council for consideration; this
being to support the duty of the Authority to promote and maintain high standards of
conducts by Members and co-opted Members of the Council.

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference for the Standards and Conduct Committee are reviewed each
year to ensure they represent current regulations.

The functions of the Standards and Conduct Committee are:

o To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted
members of the authority.

o To advise the authority in relation to the adoption, revision or replacement of the
code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted members
of the authority when they are acting in that capacity.

o To consider and determine written allegations that a member or co-opted member of
the authority has failed to comply with the authority’s code of conduct, or that a
member or co-opted member of a parish council in the Leeds area has failed to
comply with the parish council’s code of conduct.

o Following a determination of whether or not a member or co-opted member of the
authority has failed to comply with the code of conduct, to consider whether or not
action might be necessary, and to make recommendations on the form of action.

o To advise the authority in relation to the adoption, revision or replacement of the
code dealing with the conduct that is expected of employees of the authority.

3. COMMITTEE INFORMATION

Committee Membership

Councillor Elizabeth Nash (Chair) - Hunslet and Riverside;
Councillor Neil Dawson - Morley South;

Councillor Bob Gettings JP — Morley North;

Councillor Pauleen Grahame —Crossgates and Whinmoor;
Councillor Peter Harrand - Alwoodley;

Councillor Mark Harrison - Pudsey;

Councillor Arif Hussain - Gipton and Harehills;

Councillor Debbie Potter - Shadwell Parish Council;

Page 28



4. Key Issues

Progressing the Recommendations from the Committee on Standards in Public
Life.

The Committee launched their findings at an event in Parliament on the 30th January
2019 to which the chair, Clir Nash and the Deputy Monitoring Officer were invited by the
Committee’s secretariat.

Following recommendations made by the Standards and Conduct Committee, the Annual
Council meeting approved enhancements of the ethical framework in Leeds — particularly
relating to Bullying and Harassment provisions in the Code of Conduct, the involvement of
the Independent Person at Stage 1 of the complaints process and to the guidance
available to Members relating to Social Media.

Since the publication of the report the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government has been engaging with a small number of local authority Monitoring Officers
(Leeds included) to formulate the steps necessary to implement the Committee on
Standards in Public Life (CSPL) recommendations. However, given the recent
constraints on parliamentary time little progress has been made in responding to the
CSPL recommendations.

However, in response to one recommendation, the Local Government Association are
currently undertaking a consultation exercise on the content of a new draft Members’
Code of Conduct — the intention being that a draft Code will be consulted upon at some
point in the Spring with the LGA currently scheduled to consider a final document at their
Annual Meeting in July 2020. Subiject to this being approved, this will be available for
adoption by Local Authorities.

Training

During 2019 10 members were newly elected. All Members received induction training on
the requirements of the Code of Conduct and the specific requirements relating to the
registration and declaration of interests. Members were also provided with the Monitoring
Officer’s guidance on Social Media.

In addition, as part of prescribed training for councillors who are members of Plans
Panels, briefings have been provided on the legal framework concerning the avoidance of
bias and predetermination.

In May 2019 all-out Parish and Town Council Elections took place.....<add in more detail
re this when provided>

Register of Interests

The Monitoring Officer has supported members of the Authority (and of Parish and Town
Councils) in meeting their obligations to notify any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28
days of either their election or of a change in the circumstances relating to such interests.

In addition, regular reminders have been issued to elected members to review their
registers of interests. Whilst some reminders have been general in nature others have
provided focussed advice with reminders in the past year including: gifts and hospitality;
the need to register spousal interests; interests arising from employment, office, trade,

Page 29



profession or vocation; dual hatted interests; and interests relating to consideration of the
budget.

Sensitive Interests

Permission to withhold an interest may only be granted in cases where disclosure of the
details of an interest could lead to a member or co-opted member, or a person connected
with the member or co-opted member, being subject to violence or intimidation — it is
particularly relevant that that threat or potential threat would be substantially contributed
to as a result of those interests appearing on the members’ public register.

The Monitoring Officer highlighted the Section 32 provisions to all new and returning
members after the 2018 all-out elections and has also reviewed the previously granted
permissions to ensure they remain necessary.

Twenty Six (12 in 2018/19) permissions to withhold interests are in place (having been
granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of the 435 elected Leeds City Council and
Parish and Town Council Members across the Leeds Metropolitan District, an increase of
14 on the previous year.

Twenty (7 in 2018/19) of these relate to Leeds City Councillors, a substantial increase
from last year. This reflects the trend nationally where elected representatives face
increased threats and being targeted maliciously — often, although not exclusively, via
Social Media.

The actions taken by the Monitoring Officer in Leeds in relation to Sensitive Interests
mirrors a recommendation recently made (December 2017) by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life. The Committee, in their report ‘Intimidation in Public Life — A
review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life’, recommend that all Monitoring
Officers ‘Should ensure members required to declare pecuniary interest are aware of the
sensitive interest provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

Members attention is also drawn to the report from the Committee on Standards in Public
Life, (reported to the Committee last year) into Local Government Standards
Arrangements which made a recommendation to Government to clarify that a councillor
does not need to register their home address on an authority’s register of interests. No
progress has been made by Government in relation to this.

Dispensations

No alterations have been made to the Standards and Conduct Committee’s conclusions
regarding local prohibitions on councillor’s involvement in decision making where they
have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

One of the two dispensations in place allows members (when they have a DPI) to make
representations at a meeting where members of the public have the same entitlement —
however those members must not otherwise be involved in the decision making of the
decision making body. There have been no issues arising from this dispensation during
the year.

The other active dispensation permits members to take part and vote in matters relating
to:
e Any office held within Leeds City Council for which they receive a taxable income;
and

Page 30



e Any office held outside Leeds City Council (to which they have been appointed by
Leeds City Council) for which they receive a taxable income.

Members will recall from last year’s report that in May 2018, following all out elections,
both dispensations were granted until May 2022 reflecting the four year term of office to
be served by one third of those councillors elected. A new dispensation was granted in
the same terms for those Members elected at the 2019 local election lasting until May
2023 reflecting their term of office, with a further dispensation being granted for the
Member elected at the 2019 by-election also to expire in May 2023 at the end of her term
of office.

Complaint handling

In order to be considered under the formal complaints process, complaints must be
submitted in writing, must provide information to substantiate the claims made, and
should outline what form of resolution the complainant is seeking.

Each complaint is assessed by either the Monitoring Officer (or one of her Deputies), in
consultation with the Independent Person; it is the Monitoring Officer (or her nominated
Deputy) that makes a decision as to whether it will be treated as a valid complaint or not.
Where information is lacking, complainants are also offered the opportunity to provide
further information to substantiate their complaint to enable an objective assessment to
be undertaken.

Complaints relating to Leeds City Councillors

From the commencement of this Municipal Year (to date) there have been 12 complaints
made against Leeds City Councillors. This is the more than those reported in this report

last year (6 complaints were reported to Council in March 2018 — although by the end of
the last Municipal year a total of seven complaints had been received).

There have been no clear trends in relation to the types of complaints received, although
four complaints relate to the same issues complained of by 4 different individuals — and
related to the same Subject Member. Two further separate complaints (from different
individuals) related to the same Subject Member

Complaints alleging a failure to register a disclosable pecuniary interest are matters for
consideration by the West Yorkshire Police as the Localism Act 2011 has made such
failures a criminal offence. No such complaints have been received this year.

Complaints relating to Parish and Town Councillors in Leeds

Last year, at the time the Full Council met, Members were advised that 2 complaints were
received in respect of Parish and Town Council Members. No further complaints were
received between the Full Council meeting and the end of the Municipal year.

At the time of this report, in the 2019/20 Municipal Year the Monitoring Officer has
received 7 complaints relating to Parish or Town Councillors in the Leeds area.

There have been no trends in relation to the complaints received, although 5 complaints
related to the same issues complained of by 5 different individuals and related to the
same Subject Member. Two complaints received were separate complaints but related
(in part) to the same Subject Member.

Page 31



Supporting Members of Parish and Town Councils

Parish and Town Councils continue with the greater responsibilities under the Localism
Act 2011 for making their own standards arrangements. These responsibilities include:

o promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by their own Members;

o formally adopting a Code of Conduct that is consistent with the requirements of the
Localism Act and publicising that adoption;

o completing a register of disclosable pecuniary interests and ensuring that

information about this register is available on the Parish or Town Council’s own
website (if it has one);

o putting in place arrangements for Members to apply for and be granted a
dispensation; and
o ensuring that arrangements are in place for the Parish or Town Council to consider

any complaints referred to it by Leeds City Council and to decide on any
appropriate action against the subject Member.

Under the previous standards and conduct legislation many of these responsibilities were
carried out by the Standards Committee on behalf of Parish and Town Councils.

Leeds City Council also has a responsibility to collate the registers of interest completed
by Parish and Town Councillors in Leeds and to publish these on the Council’s website.

In May 2019, all-out elections took place for parish and town councillors across the Leeds
district. Arrangements were put in place to provide guidance to parish and town council
clerks in respect of these duties and bespoke training was offered to all clerks at three
venues across the city.

Following the all-out Parish and Town Elections arrangements were made to receive and
publish registers of interests from each town and parish council. The Monitoring Officer
undertook careful tracking of the registration of interests by all town and parish councillors
— there are 32 Parish and Town Councils with 303 Councillors. The Monitoring Officer
has received the vast majority of these with a very small' number being in the process of
being chased up with the clerks concerned.

Independent Person

Following the amendment to the Procedure Rules, the Independent Person, Mr Tollefson,
is now routinely consulted on draft complaint assessments. He also has regular briefing
meetings with one of the Deputy Monitoring Officers and during the year has provided
support to Members to help resolve issues.

Monitoring Officer

The City Solicitor is appointed as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer
has reported that she is satisfied that the Authority continues to meet its statutory
obligations for standards and conduct and has confirmed that she has designated an
additional Head of Service to undertake the role of a second Deputy Monitoring Officer.
The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that she has adequate resources to fulfil her
statutory duties.

1 Three registers have not been received since the elections in May 2019 — 2 from one Parish Council and 1
another (both with the same clerk). One further register is due from one Town Council as a result of a Town
Councillor appointment in late January 2020.

Page 32



	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 8 March 2019
	7 Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer to the Standards and Conduct Committee
	8 Annual Report of the Committee to Full Council
	200127 Appendix 1 Ctte Rep to Full Council


